GREAT CENTRAL ENGINES
in NORTH EASTERN TERRITORY

By Ken Hoole

he author of this article, well-known for his writings
on NER and LNER subjects, was of great assistance
to the present writer in the course of research into LNER
locomotives, as well as being a source of advice and
encouragement to the latter and his colleague the late
David Jackson. His sudden death was a great loss, to us as
to many others, and he has been greatly missed ever
since. This article, which was specially prepared for us,
such was his unfailing kindness, is presented here as a
tribute.
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The Great Central worked its trains into the two main
NER stations, and this brought various GC Section
locomotives into Hull and York in LNER days. The origins
of these workings are of historical interest, and date from
the 1860s, when on 20 October 1862 the NER
completed an agreement with the South Yorkshire &
River Don Railway (confirmed in the NER Hull &
Doncaster Branch Act of 1863) granting running powers
to the South Yorkshire Co. from Thorne Junction to Hull.
These powers were not ratified until a further Agreement
between the NER and the Manchester, Sheffield &
Lincolnshire Railway, signed on |1 July 1873, which
allowed the MSLR to work passenger traffic into Hull
from August 1874; goods traffic through to Hull had
commenced running in August 1872, an exception being

...by 1923 all workings appear to have been operated from the Sheffield end, using D9 4-4-0s...

that coal and coke not for the MSLR's own use could not
be carried under the running powers.

To reach York from the northern end of the Swinton
& Knottingley Joint Line the Great Central obtained
running powers over the NER from Ferrybridge Junction;
these applied to passenger traffic only and were
exercised for that purpose from 15 March 1899.
However, goods traffic from the GC could only be
worked between Ferrybridge and Milford Junction, but
that excluded the carriage of coal and coke. Under a NE-
GC Agreement the NER laid sidings at Milford Junction,
with the GCR providing engine power for shunting and
the NER providing shunters at cost to the GC. A
supplementary Agreement in 1902 covered the shunting
of wagons by NE and GC engines, and a further
Agreement in 1914 covered the provision of additional
sidings at Milford Junction for use by the GCR.

In the first LNER Working Timetable, in force from 9
July 1923, goods trains from Ardwick (2), Mexborough
(2), Banbury (3) and Huskisson terminated at Milford
Junction, and five light engines ran from Mexborough to
Milford Junction; presumably these were to work trains
from Milford Junction to GC Section destinations.

As the NE Area and GC Section services became
more integrated the GC engines began to work their
trains through to York, and Milford Junction, which had

Nos. 6026 and 5108 are seen

coupled together at the Up main platform in this typical 1930s view of Sheffield Victoria.




“From late 1929 B2 4-6-0s began to appear daily....” City of Chester is in characteristic early-thirties condition in this picture at Hull
Botanic Gardens shed, taken in 1934.

lost its passenger service in 1904, lost virtually all its
importance. However, until the 1960s it was used as an
engine-changing point, where Selby-based engines took
over summer trains from Lancashire and the West Riding,
bound for Bridlington and Scarborough.

In the timetable in force at | January 1923 there were
six Great Central passenger trains in each direction
between York and Sheffield Victoria. From York these
were the 10.27am (restaurant-car to Bournemouth),
I'1.45am (restaurant-car to Swansea), 3pm (restaurant-
car to Oxford with through coach to Southampton),
6.25pm (restaurant-car to Swindon with through coach
to Penzance), 10.3pm to Bristol (not calling at Sheffield
Victoria), and | 1.55pm to Sheffield. From Sheffield; at
I.32am MX (from Swindon), 8.15am (Sheffield). 2pm
(from Oxford), 3.10pm (from Swansea), 6.30pm (from
Bournemouth), and 10.9pm (Sheffield, with through
coach from Penzance).

With the advent of the summer timetable on 9 July the
10.27am Bournemouth was brought forward to leave
York at 9.50am and rerouted via Selby, joining its previous
route at Milford Junction, making it 20 minutes earlier at
Pontefract and |8 minutes earlier into Sheffield. Prior to
World War One a GC Atlantic or a Director 4-4-0 had
been stationed at York for the Bournemouth train, but by
1923 all workings appear to have been operated from the
Sheffield end, using D9 4-4-0s, of which there were
eighteen based at Neepsend Loco. Lincoln shed had a
small allocation of D9s, and from May 1927 a Lincoln
engine, usually D9 51 13, was to be found on the Harwich-
York portion of the North Country Continental.
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My first sight of GC engines was in Hull in the early

1920s when on my way to school by tram (fare one
halfpenny) we were held up most mornings at the Hessle
Road level crossing for a passenger train heading for
Paragon station from the Hessle direction. At that time |
didn't know a Great Central engine from a North
Eastern, but an engine frequently on this train carried a
name and this made it an exception among the fleet of
unnamed NER locomotives; the name was King George V,
and the train was the 6.47am Doncaster-Hull slow,
worked by a Sheffield engine. Later | identified this engine
as belonging to Class D9, and it was this Class which was
responsible for both the daily workings of Sheffield
engines to Hull. The engine off the morning slow
returned home on the 10.42am 'through express' to
Sheffield, and the engine on the 3.48pm arrival from
Sheffield returned on the 6.33pm from Hull. It was not
until many years later that | discovered that an engine of
this Class was at one time out-stationed at Hull for
workings to Sheffield.

In 1928 my father's employment brought about a
move from Hull to Bridlington, but it was decided that |
should continue my education in Hull and in November
1928 | started to travel daily from Bridlington to Hull on
the 8am non-stop, booked to cover the 3| miles in 41
minutes (later reduced to 37 minues), returning on the
5.8pm from Hull with a stop (to pick up only) at Beverley.
At first the 5.8 pm started from Platform 4 at Paragon
station, but various train retimings meant that it had to be
moved to Platform 5, and as school finished at 4.30pm |
was usually at the station in time to see the 4.40pm arrival
from Bridlington in Platform 4. The stock for the 5.8pm
Scarborough was put into the platform in good time, but
this was a busy period and as there was no empty



platform available for the 4.45pm arrival from Sheffield
(conveying a through coach from Swansea) this train had
to draw up behind the four-coach Bridlington train in
Platform 4.

As the 5.8pn Scarborough train consisted of a five-
coach set plus afirst-class Club saloon the compartments
of the leading coach were usually adjacent to the engine of
the Sheffield train standing only three or four feet away on
the next track, and often the cab of the D9 was just
outside the windows of my usual compartment. By this
time | had noted the Sheffield engines -6017,6019. 6020,
6026, 6030, 6034, 6040 and 604, and only occasionally
did astranger appear. One | remember was Atlantic 5266.
From late 1929 B2 4-6-0s began to appear daily on both
the morning and afternoon workings, and this meant that
| saw the early-turn engine as | ran into Hull at about
8.40am, because the B2s could not be turned at Botanic
Gardens shed; they reached the shed by running tender-
first from the station to Anlaby Road, then chimney-first
on the Victoria Dock branch to Botanic Gardens box,

afternoon turn, with the morning turn still being worked
byaB2.

Another GC Class | came across at Hull was || | —the
ubiquitous 0-6-0s; at times of pressure ]| | visitors to Hull
were used by Dairycoates shed for Beverley race
specials, and | well remember being surprised at the sight
of No.61 |6 at the head of such a train.

Before we moved from Hull a favourite venue of mine
was Hessle station, where there was a good variety of
traffic on the four-track section which extended as far out
as Staddlethorpe (now Gilberdyke) where the Leeds and
Doncaster lines diverged. Usually the GC engines were
04 2-8-0 and Q4 0-8-0 on mineral trains from south
Yorkshire pits, made up of private-owner wagons. At
about the same time the O4s from the Railway Operating
Department began to appear at Dairycoates and
Springhead, and eventually they replaced the native Hull
& Barnsley 0-6-0s which worked in pairs on the mineral

trains from Cudworth to Hull.
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“Another GC Class | came across at Hull was ] | | — the ubiquitous 0-6-0Os...” Widely scattered over the years, || Is turned up at all

sorts of unexpected places. Here No.5236 is seen standing on the shed at Doncaster, carrying the plain LNER chimney which became
standard in later years.

reversing again into the shed yard at the east end.
On most mornings the engine was held at Victoria
Crossing box, where the Victoria Dock branch crossed
the Bridington-Hull line on the level, to allow the
Bridington train a clear run into Paragon station. The usual
B2s were Sir Sam Fay, City of Chester and City of Liverpool,
and usually the same engine appeared again on the
afternoon arrival, there being almost three hours turn-
round time at Sheffield. In October 1931 5435 Sir Clement
Royds was transferred to Sheffield and began to appear in
Hull, although if | remember it rightly, only on the
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The move to Bridlington in 1928 brought to light the
fact that one of the weekly newspapers published a list of
excursions and specials due to arrive there in the
following week, and | soon discovered the variety of
engines that could be seen at holiday periods. From
Easter 1929 | spent as much time as possible at the
station, usually the whole day on summer Saturdays, but
going to watch the trains on a Sunday was frowned upon
by my parents and | often wonder what | missed on those
occasions! The list in the paper proved invaluable, and |
remember going back to the station one Bank Holiday



Monday to see an excursion due about an hour after the
usual arrival times, and it turned out to be well worth it
for it gave me my first sight of a green Bl — No.5196, |
believe from Woodford shed.

The D9s from Sheffield that | had seen in Hull were, |
found, also regular summer visitors to Bridlington, usually
running via Hull but avoiding Paragon station by taking the
original Bridlington line from Hessle Road to Cottingham
South. Usually B5, B6, B7 and B8 4-6-0s were on these
excursions from GC territory, and the three Bés,
Nos.5052, 5053 and 5416 visited the East Coast almost
daily at the peak of the summer season on public and

On 9 July 1923 the LNER introduced the Harrogate
Pullman at | I.15am from Kings Cross, running via Leeds
Central, Harrogate and Darlington to Newcastle.(arr.
5.2pm), with the Up train at 8.20am from Newcastle and
following the same route to arrive Kings Cross at
3.15pm. From |3 July 1925 the train was extended to
Edinburgh, and although the Down working was
unchanged a reasonable departure time from Edinburgh
(8.30am) put the Up train at |1.12am from Newcastle
and the Kings Cross arrival time at 5.5pm. On these
workings the NE Area engines worked the Pullman trains
between Leeds Central and Newcastle; south of Leeds
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“.....04s from the RalI“\;v:;E)berating Division began to appear at Dairycoatéé and Springhead...” No.6617 is at the latter during the

period when it was working regularly to and from Cudworth. Springhead was the former Hull & Barnsley shed, and HBR No.2418 is
visible in the left background.

'guaranteed' excursions, usually arriving about 10.30am
and departing about 7.30. The only other GC Class |
came across at that time was on a visit to Scarborough to
see the A5\2 4-6-2 tanks which worked in daily from
Saltburn via Whitby West Cliff and Robin Hood's Bay. The
AS5s were not normally seen south of Scarborough,
although No. 1712 was one of the machines on show ata
railway exhibition held at Hull on 25 March 1928, and
1719 was at a similar exhibition at York on |7 June the
sameyear.

At Scarborough there was even more variety than at
Bridlington, because in addition to the trains coming in
from the latter there were trains via York and Malton.
Thus during the 1930s every type of ex-GC 4-6-0 visited
Scarborough, though on the only recorded visit of a B3
(6168 Lord Stuart of Wortley) | missed seeing it! GE
Atlantics and Directors arrived, with J I | 0-6-Os from the
Sheffield and Barnsley area, but the most surprising ex-
GC engine | saw at Scarborough was C13 tank 5193 on 2
October 1940; what it was doing so far from home
(Gorton) | was never able to discover.

* %k K K

the Pullmans were worked by Southern Area crews from
Kings Cross and Copley Hill, using B3 4-6-0 engines.

From 21 September 1925 a second Pullman
commenced running between London and Leeds, and
the Harrogate Pullman (sometimes known as the
Edinburgh Pullman or the Harrogate-Edinburgh Pullman)
was re-routed to miss Leeds, running north of Doncaster
via Knottingley, Church Fenton and Spofforth to
Harrogate. Departure time from Kings Cross became
I'1.30am and the Pullman was due at Harrogate at 3.5pm,
with no intermediate stop; the train arrived at Edinburgh
at 7.35pm. In the Up direction Edinburgh was left at
8.30am, and leaving Harrogate at |.5pm the non-stop
run to Kings Cross gave an arrival time of 4.45pm.

The interest in the new method of working stems
from the fact that Southern Area engines based at Kings
Cross and Copley Hill were working through to
Harrogate, and from September 1925 the Harrogate
Pullman was often worked by B3 4-6-0 engines until they
left the GN Section early in 1927. From early 1927 until
the service reverted to the Leeds Central route on | May
1928 Director 4-4-0s worked the train, presumably from
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“.....they replaced the native H & B 0-6-0s, .which worked in pairs from Cudworth to Hull....” One of the latter, 23 2454, is pictured at
an unknown location, looking rather forlorn without connecting-rods, possibly waiting to go for scrap. The very unusual domeless
boiler is worthy of note, this feature being once very familiar in the Hull area.

the Leeds end, with GN Atlantics from the Kings Cross
end. During this period the late S. Ellingworth
photographed 5507 Gerard Powys Dewhurst on the Down
train, and Cl Atlantic 4411 on the Up, both near
Tadcaster, and these are the only photos | know of the
Pullmans on this route. From | May 1928 the train was

A5/2 4-6-2 tanks worked in daily from Saltburn...” No.1784 was photographed at Gateshead shed, the date not known. These

officially known as the Queen of Scots.

Also of interest is the fact that the Southern Area
engines worked NE Area trains between Leeds and
Harrogate. This came about because of the introduction
of the West Riding Pullman, which terminated at Leeds
Central in the Down direction but started from

engines changed little in appearance over the years.




Harrogate in the Up. Thus there was the problem of
getting the Pullman set to Harrogate in time for its
departure at | |.15am (worked by a Starbeck engine),
and getting the Southern Area engine to Harrogate to
work the Up Harrogate-Edinburgh Pullman at |.5pm;
this was solved by combining the two, and the empty
stock for the Up West Riding was worked by the
Southern Area engine for the Up Edinburgh Pullman.
The Pullman set was due in Harrogate at 10.47am, and
the Southern Area engine kicked its heels for a couple of
hours before setting off on the non-stop run to London.
In the opposite direction the Southern Area engine
arriving on the Pullman via Church Fenton worked to

Westinghouse brake for engine and train. They were
fitted with double side-window cabs similar to the
engines built in 1923 for the GC Section. Later the NE
Area reduced the depth of the frames immediately
behind the smokebox to give improved access to the
motion.

When new the majority of the NE Area engines were
allocated to three Tyneside sheds — Gateshead, Heaton
and Blaydon, but three engines, Nos. 1719/66/7, were
tried for a time working from York, Leeds and Starbeck
sheds. However by the middle of 1926 all were on
Tyneside, with six at Gateshead and seven at Heaton. On
28 May 1928 three Gateshead engines (1766/7/84) and

“....I soon discovered the variety of engines that could be seen at holiday periods.” B4 6096 is seen leaving Driffield in 1936 with a
typical summertime excursion, probably heading for Bridlington. The train is believed to be from the West Riding as No.6096 was
stationed in Leeds at this time.

Leeds on the 4.45pm from Harrogate, due in Leeds
Central at 5.15pm; this train conveyed ‘Through
Carriages' from Harrogate to Kings Cross.

In conclusion, perhaps it should be mentioned that
the use of the Harrogate-Church Fenton-Knottingley-
Doncaster route by "foreign' engines was nothing new, as
for years a GN engine was outstationed at Starbeck for
working Harrogate-Kings Cross trains as far as

Doncaster.
* Kk k *

At Grouping the North Eastern Railway had 261
passenger tank engines, comprising 60 Class A 2-4-2, 46
BTP 0-4-4 (which were approaching the end of their life),
| 10 Class 0 0-4-4, and 45 Class D 4-4-4. However, a need
was made out for further large engines, and |13 A5 4-6-2
tanks were built by Hawthorn Leslie & Co. in 1925; these
differed slightly from the true Great Central engines in
having reduced boiler mountings, with the addition of

four Blaydon engines (1738/56/60/90) were moved to
Saltburn in exchange for a similar number of NER Class D
4-4-4 tanks (LNER Class H1); when at Saltburn the A5
engines were used extensively between Saltburn and
Darlington, but Saltburn also had a long-established
working down the coast to Scarborough. For many years
Scarborough was the southern limit of A5 workings but
eventually some were stationed at Hull. On 27 June 1928
the three A5s remaining at Blaydon (1769/71/82) were
moved to Heaton, with the instruction that they were
‘required for use on Tyne Boat Trains' a duty which the
A5s performed for many years.

The remaining three A5s at Gateshead followed to
Heaton in August 1929, but as only three engines were
required for the Tyne Commission Quay boat trains one
A5 was passed on to Saltburn and two to Middlesbrough,
in exchange for three Class D 4-4-4 tanks 'because of
unsatisfactory working on the Saltburn-Darlington line.'
With three at Heaton, two at Middlesbrough and eight at
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Saltburn the A5 allocation remained remarkably constant
until August 1938, when the three Heaton engines were
transferred to Middlesbrough in a move to standardise
the classes of engines at various sheds, because the VI 2-
6-2 tanks were now the mainstay of the traffic on
Tyneside. Between 30 March and 17 April 1939 an
exchange of A5 and A8 engines took all thirteen ASs to
Darlington, where they remained undisturbed for some
years, except for 1760 and 1766 to Neasden on 7
November and 29 October respectively, to cover 'a
shortage of heavy tank engines in the Southern Area'. To
balance the transfer, the Southern Area sent in exchange
two J39 0-6-Os, but the four engines involved were
returned to their native Areas in February 1945
(1766/2789) and March 1945 (1760 and 1273).

In their years at Darlington the A5 engines put in a
tremendous amount of work on the various branches
radiating from the town, notably to Saltburn, Crook,
Middleton-in-Teesdale and the Richmond line with its
branch to Catterick Camp; here some of the trains were
rostered for two A5 engines because of the climb up to
the Camp station.

* ¥k ¥ K

Prior to the Grouping the NER had on loan from the
Government a number of ROD Robinson 2-8-0s, and on
2| February 1924 seven engines of this type arrived at
Darlington Works for reconditioning, followed by a
further three the following day. These were for use in
Scotland, and the work involved fitting new copper
fireboxes and replacement of the Westinghouse brake by
steam brake for engine only; they were put into traffic in
July and August 1924, the engines concerned being
6286/8/90/1,6328/46/51/2/70/2.

In 1928 the NE Area was allocated twenty-four of the
final purchase from the Government, divided originally
between Hull (18) and York (6). On 27 September 1929
658land 6613 were transferred from Dairycoates to
Springhead, the former Hull & Barnsley Railway shed at
Hull, for experimental working on the Hull & Barnsley
main line to Cudworth, and these were quickly followed
on 5 October 1929 by 6576 and 6580 from York, and on
23 October by 6612 and 6614 from Dairycoates, all 'to
work in place of Class B engines at Springhead, doing
away with double-heading'. The 2-8-0 engines proved to
be aninstant success on the Hull & Barnsley line, with coal
traffic heading east and empty wagons west back to the
South Yorkshire collieries; they rapidly displaced the H &
B Class A 0-8 Os and the Class B 0-6-0s, which became
scattered over the NE Area. The reign of the O4s on the
H & B lasted for many years, and although there was a
break during the war it was not until September 1951 that
their long spell in charge was broken.

* %k K K

At 2.25am on Wednesday | July 1925 six light engines,
coupled, from the Southern Area were due to leave
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Doncaster, to run at no more than | 5mph to Stockton,
followed at 8.45am by a further six engines to run at no
more than 45mph. They were due to reach Stockton at
8.45am and 9.25am respectively, and were bound for the
Stockton & Darlington Centenary procession from
Stockton to Darlington on the following day. On the day
following the procession the engines were on display at
the static exhibition held at Faverdale Wagon works,
Darlington.

On the occasion of international football and rugby
matches played in Scotland special trains were often
worked by GC Section engines as far as Newcastle. For
instance, on |7 April 1937 B2 5423 Sir Sam Fay and 5428
City of Liverpool, C4 5262 and 6090, and D10 5435 Sir
Clement Royds spent the day at Gateshead awaiting their
return trains, and on 5 February 1938 C4 5262 and 5358
were noted on Tyneside.

Other strangers noted in the NE Area were 12 0-6-0
6425 at Hull Springhead in 1924; D7 4-4-0 5689 at
Darlington on 24 July 1927, and J63 0-6-0t 5538 in
Gateshead shed on 27 April 1935; the last-named was on
its way to Scotland for trials in the Edinburgh area.

In coal consumption trials held in 1924 an interchange
of engines took N5 0-6-2t 5750 to Darlington and
5755/70/4 to York, and 1 | (5)323 was sent to Tyne Dock
to be compared with |27 06-0 2339.

The Report issued by the Bridge Stress Committee in
1926 revealed that eleven bridges in the NE Area had
been tested by using various classes of engines and
running them over the bridges at different speeds.
Amongst the LNER, LMS, GWR and Southern engines
chosen were two ex-GC designs, C4 5360 and BI 5195
or 5196. The bridges ranged from Newland Bridge (Drax
and Airmyn on the Selby-Goole branch) and Brotherton
both over the River Aire — in the south, to Wearmouth
Bridge and Queen Alexandra Bridge — both over the
River Wear at Sunderland in the north.

In December 1927 H.N. Gresley, the LNER Chief
Mechanical Engineer, sent a set of drawings of the Class
S| 0-8-4 tank to his assistant CME at Darlington, A.C.
Stamer, to see if a booster could be fitted to the rear
bogie of this ex-GC design. A year later Gresley
recommended to the Chief General Manager that two
engines should be fitted, but in June 1929 one conversion
was authorised, at a cost of £1,928. Gresley was told that
if the order was for five sets of booster equipment they
would be supplied at a reduced price, so five were
ordered and subsequently fitted to one existing and two
new S| 0-8-4 tanks and to two C7 Atlantics of NER
design. In its early stages the S| was a Darlington Works
project, and presumably as a result of this No.617| —the
engine subsequently chosen for conversion — was
transferred to Hull Dairycoates on 4 February 1928,
although it was never reported as being seen there. Its
stay at Hull was short, although on paper it was not
transferred back to the Southern Area until 28 May 1932!



“....the engine subsequently chosen for conversion was transferred to Hull Dairycoates on 4 February 1928.” No.617 | is pictured at
alater stage in its career, the scene being Mexborough shed where it was based for many years. The booster can be seen at the rear
below the cab.

* ok ok K ok

To add a little more to Ken's overview, the following
extracts from the Railway Magazine are relevant; with
reference to the Class A5 engines built for service in the
NE Area, a Mr J.L. Hobson, writing in the issue of
December 1931, had this to say:-

“Thirteen locomotives of this type were built by
Hawthorn, Leslie & Co in 1924-25, and ever since have

acquitted themselves well. 7en of these engines are in
service between Saltburn and Darlington, a route on
which heavy loads are common, occasionally in summer
reaching 12 bogie coaches or even more. Some of the
train also, are sharply-timed expresses. This route
connects the towns of Darlington and Middlesbrough
with the coast resorts of Redcar and Saltburn, and as an
example of the timings only |12min are allowed for non-
stopping trains over the seven-and-three-quarter miles
from Middlesbrough to restarting from Redcar. The

“The conversion of the NE 4-4-4 tanks to the 4-6-2 type is no doubt consequent on the highly successful performances of the

A5 GC-type engines.” No. 1527 was still in original 4-4-4 condition when photographed at Darlington on 22 June 1933.



“.....B5, B6, B7 and B8 4-6-0s were on these excursions from GC territory.” The shed clock shows 2.5pm as B7 5458, a Gorton

engine, turns at Scarborough following arrival with a summer excursion.

remaining three 4-6-2s are at present at Heaton for
working the boat trains between Newcastle and Tyne
Commission Quay.”

And later in the same item:- “The conversion of the
NE 4-4-4 tank locomotive No.2162 to the 4-6-2 type is
no doubt consequent on the highly successful
performances of the A5 Great Central type engines now
in service in the NE Area. In the summer months, the
Saturday 'Norseman' is made up to nine corridor
coaches. Every Sunday, in the reverse direction, a
sleeping-car express leaves the Quay for London. The 4-
4-4 tanks (known locally as the "Teddy Bears') in their
original condition have several disadvantages. They
frequently slip at starting, even with light loads, and tend
to roll even at moderate speeds. No doubt the
conversion will do much to remedy this. No.2162 was for
a time after its conversion at Heaton shed, and was then
sent to Middlesbrough. From here it ran to Newcastle on
the 9.20am express, and after working a slow train to
Sunderland and back, returned to Middlesbrough on the
3.17pm express from Newcastle, a turn usually worked
by an 0-4-4 tank.”

Concerning events at Hull, the issue of July 1932
carries the following:-

“Mr H.L. Shaw mentions having seen No.5505 Ypres
at Hull, making four journeys on that day between
Sheffield and Hull, which are usually worked by a 'Sir Sam
Fay' 4-6-0. Another unusual event on this route was a
train of ten bogie corridor coaches, fourteen loaded fish
vans and two parcels vans, on the 2.50pm from Hull to
Sheffield on a Saturday afternoon in April. This enormous
train, of over seventy axles and not far short of 500 tons in
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weight, was worked by NE Area 4-6-0 No.|384 (late
Class S3) piloting GC 4-4-0 No.6040 of Class D9.”

And in the following September:-

“References to locomotive workings between Hull
and Sheffield have elicited letters from Messrs. E.
Rounthwaite and N. Straker. Mention was made of the
2.50pm from Hull to Sheffield carrying an exceptional
load of fish vans, but it is common for the passenger
portion of this train, consisting of six bogies and two
parcels vans, to have an addendum on Saturdays of at
least ten fish vans, bringing the load to over 50
axles......... As regards locomotives, 'Sir Sam Fay' 4-6-0s
- usually Nos. 5423, 5424 and 5426 - work in from
Sheffield on two turns, the second being at 4.47pm on the
train carrying the through South Wales coach, and
returning on the 6.30pm.”

Allocations of the various GC engines mentioned are
as follows:- D9 6040 was at Sheffield for most of the
period from the Grouping until being sent to the MGN in
late 1935. The three Sam Fays mentioned were likewise
at Sheffield in 1932, having left Gorton in 1930-31. As for
the the Director Ypres, its appearance in Hull is
something of a mystery as it was allocated continuously to
Neasden throughout the LNER years until being
transferred to Immingham in the summer of 1947, so
why it should have been used on a Sheffield-Hull diagram
is not known. It was to be the following year when the
first Class DI | engines were sent to Sheffield, these
being former Gorton engines replaced by new B|7s. The
NER 4-6-0 engine referred to by Mr Shaw as Class S3,
No. 1384, was of course Class BI6, and was stationed at
Hull Dairycoates at this time.



